
 

 

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE/AGENDA 

MAY 13, 2025, 5:30 PM 
 

RICHARD T. FLICKINGER MUNICIPAL CENTER, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
6101 CAPULINA AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, IL 60053 

 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Other Business:  

a. Appeal of Appearance Review Commission Case AC 25-05 Entitled, “Request for 
approval of an Appearance Certificate for the installation of security shutters on the 
exterior of the property commonly with a request for a waivers to window screening 
requirements of Chapter 10-10.” 
 

b. Closed Session upon proper motion pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (4) to discuss:  
 
Evidence or testimony presented in open hearing, or in closed hearing 
where specifically authorized by law, to a quasi-adjudicative body, as 
defined in this Act, provided that the body prepares and makes available 
for public inspection a written decision setting forth its determinative 
reasoning. 

 
5. Public Comments 

 
6. Adjournment 

 
 

 



1 

 

 

 

To:            Village President and Board of Trustees 

From: Brandon Nolin, AICP, Community Development Administrator 
Anne Ryder Kirchner, Planner/Zoning Administrator 

Date: May 6, 2025 

Re:  Appearance Commission Case AC 25-05 Appeal 
Appeal of a decision by the Appearance Commission to deny a request for an Appearance Certificate for 
the installation of security shutters on the exterior of the property commonly known as 7630 Dempster 
Street in Morton Grove, Illinois (PIN 09-13-325-022-0000) with a request for a waivers to window 
screening requirements of Chapter 10-10, all within a C-2 Neighborhood Commercial District. The 
applicant is Deep Oza, owner of One Stop Liquor. 
 

Project Overview 
Deep Oza (“applicant”), owner of One Stop Liquor, submitted an Appearance Commission application to the Department 
of Community and Economic Development requesting approval of the installation of security shutters on the exterior of 
the property commonly known as 7630 Dempster Street which is located within a C-2 Neighborhood Commercial District. 
As security shutters were not explicitly referenced in the Village’s Unified Development Code at the time of application, 
such an installation may be prohibited by the Appearance Commission. A waiver to the screening requirements defined in 
Section 10-10-4:D is also required as the security shutters would be considered a window screening blocking 100% of the 
window when in use. 

The applicant installed the security shutters at the subject property without a permit and sought approval of an Appearance 
Certificate and sign waiver after the fact. Staff have cited concerns with emergency access, electrical work without a permit, and 
potential for visual blight if such installations were to become widespread.  
 
Appearance Commission Determination 
On March 4, 2025, the Appearance Commission held a public meeting on Case AC 25-05. After hearing the applicant’s 
presentation, the Appearance Commission voted unanimously (5-0) to require that the security shutters be installed on 
the interior of the business and that the security shutters shall be fully stored out of sight and not visible from the exterior 
during business hours. The Appearance Commission also stipulated that the use of the security shutters over any portion 
of the subject property windows or doors during business hours shall be prohibited. The applicant submitted a request to 
appeal the Appearance Commission decision on March 12, 2025. 

Code Update 
On March 18, 2025, the Plan Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of a text amendment pertaining to the 
installation of security shutters. The approved text amendment consisted of the same language used by the Appearance 
Commission in its determination pertaining to AC 25-05. The Village Board approved the recommended text amendment on 
April 22, 2025. One Stop Liquor was informed of these changes to the Municipal Code and requested to keep the previously 
scheduled May 13, 2025 appeal hearing. 
 
The Appearance Commission Staff Report includes additional discussion and research regarding this topic and is 
provided under separate cover. Also provided are the applicant’s appeal request and minutes from the Appearance 
Commission hearing. 

Community & Economic Development Department 

 
  



1 

 

 

 

To: Chairperson Pietron and Members of the Appearance Commission 

From: Brandon Nolin, AICP, Community Development Administrator 
Anne Ryder Kirchner, Planner/Zoning Administrator 

Date: February 25, 2025 

Re:  Appearance Commission Case AC 25-05 
Request for approval of an Appearance Certificate for the installation of security shutters on the exterior 
of the property commonly known as 7630 Dempster Street in Morton Grove, Illinois (PIN 09-13-325-022-
0000) with a request for a waivers to window screening requirements of Chapter 10-10, all within a C-2 
Neighborhood Commercial District. The applicant is Deep Oza, owner of One Stop Liquor. 
 

Project Overview 
Deep Oza (“applicant”), owner of One Stop Liquor, submitted an Appearance Commission Application to the Department 
of Community and Economic Development requesting approval of the installation of security shutters on the exterior of 
the property commonly known as 7630 Dempster Street which is located within a C-2 Neighborhood Commercial District. 
As security shutters are not explicitly referenced in the Village’s Unified Development Code such an installation may be 
prohibited by the Appearance Commission. A waiver to the screening requirements defined in Section 10-10-4:D is also 
required as the security shutters would be considered a window screening blocking 100% of the window when in use. 

The applicant installed the security shutters at the subject property without a permit and is seeking approval of an 
Appearance Certificate and sign waiver after the fact. Staff has cited concerns with emergency access, electrical work 
without a permit, and potential for visual blight if such installations become widespread. The Plan Commission is also 
considering requiring security systems to be installed on the interior as part of a forthcoming code update. 

Subject Property 
The subject property is a 0.44-acre (19,372 sq. ft.) corner lot located on the north side of Dempster Street and east side of 
Ottawa Avenue and is zoned C-2. The property to the west is also zoned C-2 and is improved with a four-story 
condominium building. Properties to the north and east are zoned R-2 and improved with single-family homes with 
detached garages. Notre Dame College Prep school is located south across Dempster Street in the Village of Niles. 

 

Subject Property Location Map 

Community & Economic Development Department 

 
  



 

2 

Facade 
The applicant has installed a silver aluminum security shutter system on all windows and doors at the subject property. 
The shutters roll into a seven inch (7 in.) by seven inch (7 in.) aluminum housing that sits at the top of the window 
opening. The shutter housing conceals the upper portion of the windows and transom. The shutters slide in a track at the 
outside edge of each window, so they cannot be pried away from the window. The security system represents a change 
to the façade of a commercial property and must be approved by the Appearance Commission. 

    
LEFT: Existing Shutter Installation at Subject Property; RIGHT: Shutter Panel Example (Source: QMi USA) 

Signs 
In addition to seeking approval for the exterior façade changes caused by the security shutter housing, the applicant is 
requesting a waiver from the window screening requirements of Section 10-10-4 for review and approval by the 
Appearance Commission. With no clear definition of security shutters within the Unified Development Code, Staff has 
interpreted security shutters as window screenings. The installed security shutters cover 100% of all windows of the 
façade at One Stop Liquor when in use. When the shutters are retracted, the housing covers approximately the 
uppermost seven (7) inches of each window. The following table compares the proposed shutters with the Village’s 
window screening requirements pursuant to Section 10-10-4 of the Morton Grove Municipal Code:  

DIMENSIONAL 
CONTROL 

CODE REQUIREMENT PROPOSED SIGN WAIVER REQUESTED 

Window Signs and 
Window Screenings 
(Sec. 10-10-4:M.3) 

Window screenings and window signs 
combined may occupy no more than fifty 
percent (50%) of the total window area per 
frontage, except that window screening 
coverage may be increased by written 
authorization of the Village Administrator. 

100% window screening 
when shutters in use 

Waiver of 50% to allow 
100% coverage during 
use of security shutters. 

Window Signs and 
Window Screenings 
(Sec. 10-10-4:M.4) 

Window screenings and window signs shall not 
obscure more than twenty-five percent (25%) of 
the window area of any public entrance door. 

100% screening of public 
entrance doors 

Waiver of 75% to allow 
100% coverage during 
use of security shutters. 

As outlined in the table above, using the shutters requires a waiver to the following section of the Morton Grove Municipal 
Code: 

 Section 10-10-4:M – A waiver to allow 100% coverage of windows and entrances when security shutters are in 
use.  



 

3 

Departmental Review 
The project was reviewed by several department representatives (see “Attachment A”).   

 Building Department: Comments highlighting concerns regarding the electrical work performed to install the 
shutters. The installation included power supply to the shutters passing through a drop ceiling. 

• Fire Department: Comments regarding the need to provide a means of emergency operation on the exterior, 
adjacent to the shutter via a Knox key switch, to provide a clearly marked secondary egress with proper egress 
hardware, and to allow for proper inspection to identify any additional fire code violations. 

• Police Department: In review of the proposed project, the Police Chief issued the following comments: 
The Morton Grove Police Department is supportive of businesses implementing security measures to deter 
criminal activity, including the installation of infrastructure aimed at preventing smash-and-grab type 
burglaries. As a matter of best practice, the Police Department generally recommends that such security 
enhancements, including pull-down shutters, be installed on the interior of the premises. Interior installation 
helps maintain the aesthetic character of the business district while still providing effective security against 
forced entry. 

  
Code Enforcement Photos at Subject Property 

 

Discussion 
The applicant has installed a series of exterior security shutters without a permit and is seeking an Appearance Certificate 
with necessary waivers after the fact. The applicant is requesting that the shutters be allowed to remain on the exterior of 
the business. Staff recommends that the shutters be relocated to the interior of the business, but are otherwise supportive 
of the investment in the security shutters.  

The applicant has indicated the shutters are needed due to repeat break-ins that included property damage. Two break-
ins were reported in September 2019 and January 2020. More recently the front glass door suffered damage from an 
attempted, but unsuccessful break-in November 2024. The applicant provided several police incident reports to support 
claims of property damage and theft. It should be noted that only two such incident reports were related to break-ins, 
while the others are related to crimes that occurred during business hours (such as shoplifting) and such crimes would not 
be addressed by the security shutters.  

The applicant also identified three locations within the region that have external security shutters. The properties identified 
by the applicant are shown below with shutters rolled up. While Staff does not disagree that security shutters have 
become more common, there is concern with the exterior installation of security shutters having a potential blighting effect 
on the Village’s broader commercial corridors. The Plan Commission will be considering a change to the Unified 
Development Code to require interior installation of security shutters. Staff is concerned permitting the shutters at the 
subject property will set a poor precedent as outlined in the next section. 



 

4 

 
Willow Liquors - 2657 Shermer Road, Northbrook, IL (Source: Google Streetview) 

 
Extra Value Food & Liquor - 9570 Potter Rd, Des Plaines, IL (Source: Google Streetview) 

 
Cardinal Warehouse Wine & Liquors - 7780 N Milwaukee Ave, Niles, IL (Source: Google Streetview) 



 

5 

Visual Blight 
Staff understands that security is an important matter and the Village does not want to prevent shop owners from 
protecting their merchandise. The Village must also account for the negative impact to the Village’s image that could 
accompany widespread exterior installation of security shutters. The Village’s commercial corridors provide visitors with a 
critically important first impression of the Morton Grove community. A view of storefront after storefront of aluminum 
security shutters as one travels down Dempster Street or Waukegan Road would send a negative message to those 
residents and business owners considering putting down roots and investing in the community.  

Proposed Text Amendment 
The Village does not have a policy or regulations explicitly addressing security features such as shutters and gates, and 
Staff has had to rely on window screening regulations within the sign code (Chapter 10-10)  to guide location and 
transparency. As part of a public hearing scheduled for March 18, 2025, the Plan Commission will be considering a 
variety of amendments to the Unified Development Code including the following addition to Village’s design standards 
regarding security shutters: 

“Security shutters, gates, grills, or other similar security features, as deemed applicable by the Zoning 
Administrator, shall not be fully opaque and shall not be affixed to the exterior of any building façade. Interior 
security features shall not be visible from the exterior during business hours of operation. The installation of 
any security feature requires a permit to ensure that all applicable Building and Fire Codes requirements are 
met.” 

With the proposed amendment, the Village will not prevent businesses from investing in security systems, but will simply 
require that such systems be located on the interior. 

Potential for Window Damage 
Staff understands that shop owners want to limit damage to their storefront windows, but reports have shown that visible 
security barriers deter property damage. If a would-be thief sees a security shutter behind a glass window, they will be 
less likely to attempt to gain access and break the window. 

As noted in a security industry article by Loss Prevention Magazine, a store in Atlanta reported 28 storefront break-ins in 
the first two years of business at that location. The city would not allow exterior security shutters as typically installed by 
the retailer, but after installing shutters on the interior of the storefront, the same store reported zero burglary attempts in 
the following six years. (Source: https://losspreventionmedia.com/physical-safety-barriers-low-tech-can-be-highly-
effective/) 

Precedent for Interior Security Shutter Installation 
When reviewing available information from area security installers online, Staff has noted that various companies 
(including the applicant’s installer) market their security shutter systems for both interior and exterior install. The project 
image galleries used for marketing show the same systems installed both on the interior and exterior. Interior installation 
may add some cost, but that is not clear as the labor would likely be similar. The primary change in having the applicant 
install shutters on the interior would be requiring that merchandise displays be moved slightly away from the windows and 
for any signage to be flush to the window to allow for the shutters to come down.  



 

6 

As shown below, the same installation company hired by the applicant (National Shutters Chicago) has installed 
numerous shutter systems in interior retail locations throughout the region.  

     

     

 

Sample Images of Interior Security Shutter Installation (Source: National Shutters Chicago) 



 

7 

Appearance Commission Review 
In accordance with Unified Development Code Section 12-12-1:C, all site, landscape, and building plans are to be 
reviewed by the Appearance Commission, and an Appearance Certificate by the Commission granted, prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. Further, per Section 12-16-2:C.2, the Appearance Commission is charged with reviewing 
the exterior elevations, sketches, and materials and other exhibits as to whether they are appropriate to or compatible 
with the character of the immediate neighborhood and whether the submitted plans comply with the provisions of the 
regulations and standards set forth in chapter, 12 "Design Standards," of this title. 

The Design Standards (Sec. 12-12-1:D) are as follows:  
D. Criteria and Evaluation Elements: The following factors and characteristics relating to a unit or development and which 
affect appearance, will govern the appearance review commission's evaluation of a design submission:  

1. Evaluation Standards:  
a. Property Values: Where a substantial likelihood exists that a building will depreciate property values of 

adjacent properties or throughout the community, construction of that building should be barred.  
b. Inappropriateness: A building that is obviously incongruous with its surroundings or unsightly and 

grotesque can be inappropriate in light of the comprehensive plan goal of preserving the character of 
the municipality.  

c. Similarity/Dissimilarity: A builder should avoid excessively similar or excessively dissimilar adjacent 
buildings.  

d. Safety: A building whose design or color might, because of the building's location, be distracting to 
vehicular traffic may be deemed a safety hazard.  

2. Design Criteria:  
a. Standards: Appearance standards as set forth in this chapter.  
b. Logic Of Design: Generally accepted principles, parameters and criteria of validity in the solution of 

design problems.  
c. Architectural Character: The composite or aggregate of the components of structure, form, materials 

and functions of a building or group of buildings and other architectural and site composing elements.  
d. Attractiveness: The relationship of compositional qualities of commonly accepted design parameters 

such as scale, mass, volume, texture, color and line, which are pleasing and interesting to the 
reasonable observer.  

e. Compatibility: The characteristics of different uses of activities that permit them to be located near each 
other in harmony and without conflict. Some elements affecting compatibility include intensity of 
occupancy as measured by dwelling units per acre; floor area ratio; pedestrian or vehicular traffic 
generated; parking required; volume of goods handled; and such environmental effects as noise, 
vibration, glare, air pollution, erosion, or radiation.  

f. Harmony: A quality which produces an aesthetically pleasing whole as in an arrangement of varied 
architectural and landscape elements. 

g. Material Selection: Material selection as it relates to the evaluation standards and ease and feasibility of 
future maintenance. 

h. Landscaping: All requirements set forth in chapter 11, "Landscaping and Trees", of this title. (Ord. 07-
07, 3-26-2007) 



 

8 

Recommendation 
If the Appearance Commission approves the request for an Appearance Certificate for the installation of security shutters 
for the property commonly known as 7630 Dempster Street, based on draft text amendment language under 
consideration by the Plan Commission, Staff recommends the following motion and conditions of approval: 

Motion to approve Case AC 25-05, a request for waivers to select sign requirements of Chapter 10-10 for the 
property commonly known as 7630 Dempster Street in Morton Grove, Illinois, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The security shutters shall be installed on the interior of the property. 

2. The security shutter shall be fully stored out of sight and not visible from the exterior during business hours. Use 
of the security shutters over any portion of the subject property window’s or door’s during business hours shall 
be prohibited. 

3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall comply with all comments and recommendations set 
forth in the department review forms issued by the Director of Building and Inspectional Services, dated 
February 10, 2025, the Fire Prevention Bureau Coordinator, received February 13, 2025, and the Chief of Police, 
received February 12, 2025, by strict or alternative compliance, subject to the final approvals by each respective 
department representative.  

4. [Additional conditions as recommended by the Appearance Commission] 

  



 

9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

Plan Review Comment Forms for AC 25-05, 
Prepared by: 

 
Jim English, Director of Building and Inspectional Services 

Dated February 10, 2025 

Rick Dobrowski, Fire Prevention Coordinator  
Received February 13, 2025 

Mike Weitzel, Chief of Police 
Received February 12, 2025 

 





 

 

REVIEWING:                 BUILDING FIRE      POLICE PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING         TSC 
 

 
VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

PLAN REVIEW COMMENT FORM 
 

DATE DISTRIBUTED: 2/10/2025 

CASE NUMBER: AC 25-05 

APPLICATION: Request for approval of an Appearance Certificate for the installation of security shutters on the exterior of the property 
commonly known as 7630 Dempster Street in Morton Grove, Illinois (PIN 09-13-325-022-0000) with a request for a waivers to window 
screening requirements of Chapter 10-10, all within a C-2 Neighborhood Commercial District. The applicant is Deep Oza, owner of One 
Stop Liquor. 

 

An application has been submitted to the Appearance Commission for action. Please return your review to the Department of 
Community and Economic Development by Friday, February 14, 2024. 
 

Thank you,  
Brandon Nolin, AICP 
Community Development Administrator  
 

 

COMMENTS OR CONCERNS 
 

The FD will require: 
1. A means of emergency operation on the exterior, adjacent to the shutter, via a Knox key switch. 
2. A clearly marked secondary egress with proper egress hardware.  “1010.1.9 Door operations. Except as 

specifically permitted by this section, egress doors shall be readily openable from the egress side 
without the use of a key or 

special knowledge or effort.” 

3. A sign on or adjacent to the shutter stating. “The shutter shall remain secured in the full-open position 
during the period of occupancy by the public.” 

4. The installation of any security gate requires a permit to make sure that all applicable Building and Fire 
Codes requirements are met. Any code violations in this specific installation shall be remediated. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
These comments accurately represent existing Village regulations or policies.  
 
Name (please print): Rick Dobrowski 
 
Signed: 
 
Date: 02-13-2025 



REVIEWING:                 BUILDING FIRE      POLICE PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING         TSC 
 

 
VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

PLAN REVIEW COMMENT FORM 
 

DATE DISTRIBUTED: 2/10/2025 

CASE NUMBER: AC 25-05 

APPLICATION: Request for approval of an Appearance Certificate for the installation of security shutters on the exterior of the property 
commonly known as 7630 Dempster Street in Morton Grove, Illinois (PIN 09-13-325-022-0000) with a request for a waivers to window 
screening requirements of Chapter 10-10, all within a C-2 Neighborhood Commercial District. The applicant is Deep Oza, owner of One 
Stop Liquor. 

 

An application has been submitted to the Appearance Commission for action. Please return your review to the Department of 
Community and Economic Development by Friday, February 14, 2024. 
 

Thank you,  
Brandon Nolin, AICP 
Community Development Administrator  
 

 
COMMENTS OR CONCERNS 

 
 
The Morton Grove Police Department is supportive of businesses implementing security measures to deter criminal activity, 
including the installation of infrastructure aimed at preventing smash-and-grab type burglaries. 
 
As a matter of best practice, the Police Department generally recommends that such security enhancements, including pull-
down shutters, be installed on the interior of the premises. Interior installation helps maintain the aesthetic character of the 
business district while still providing effective security against forced entry. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
These comments accurately represent existing Village regulations or policies.  
 
Name (please print):  
 
Signed: 
 
Date: 



25-05















































1 
 

MINUTES OF THE MARCH 4, 2025 
MEETING OF THE MORTON GROVE APPEARANCE COMMISSION 

MORTON GROVE VILLAGE HALL, 6101 CAPULINA AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, IL 60053 
 
Pursuant to proper notice in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, the regular meeting of the Appearance 
Commission was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chairperson Pietron. Anne Ryder Kirchner called the roll.  
 
Commissioners Present:  Hedrick, Manno, Minx, Pietron, and Zimmer 

Commissioners Absent:   Block and Ingram with notice 
 

Village Staff Present:                      Brandon Nolin, AICP, Community Development Administrator 
 Anne Ryder Kirchner, Planner/Zoning Administrator 
  
Trustees Present: Minx and Thill 
 
Chairperson Pietron proceeded to seek approval of the January 7, 2025 minutes.  
 
Commissioner Minx moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Hedrick seconded the motion. Chairperson 
Pietron called for the vote. 
 
Commissioner Hedrick voting aye 
Commissioner Manno voting aye 
Commissioner Minx voting  aye 
Commissioner Zimmer voting aye 
Chairperson Pietron voting  aye 
 
Minutes approved (5-0) 
 
Chairperson Pietron called for the case. 
 
CASE:  AC 25-04 
 
APPLICANT:  Zubair Patel, ZAP Properties, LLC 
 
LOCATION:  6727 Beckwith Road 
 Morton Grove, Illinois 60053 
 
PETITION:  Request for an Appearance Certificate for site, building, and landscape plans for a detached 

single-family dwelling within the Beckwith Crossing Subdivision authorized under Ordinances 19-
10 and 21-07 

Mr. Nolin said the applicant Zubair Patel of ZAP Properties is requesting approval of an Appearance Certificate for 
site, building, and landscape plans for a proposed detached single-family dwelling at 6727 Beckwith Road (“subject 
property”). The subject property is currently vacant and is Lot 1 of the Beckwith Crossing Subdivision, which was 
approved under Ordinances 19-10 and 21-07. 
 



2 
 

The proposed building design mirrors the architecture of the home recently constructed on Lot 2 of the Beckwith 
Crossing Subdivision at 6729 Beckwith (AC 23-04). The provided rendering illustrates a slightly different, although 
complementary, use of materials and colors when compared to 6739 Beckwith.  
 
The project includes new foundation plantings and existing trees consisting of a mix of 2 established and 5 recently 
planted shade trees. As a condition of approval of the subdivision (Ord. 19-10), Appearance Commission approval of 
a landscaping and tree preservation plan and issuance of an Appearance Certificate prior to issuance of any building 
permit is required. Staff recommend that a minimum of 2 shade trees be planted to adhere to approved plans. The 
applicant has been asked to speak to the lack of any new proposed tree plantings as part of the submitted landscape 
plan, and the tree replacement requirements previously agreed to by the applicant. 
 
Mr. Patel, applicant, and Mr. Nazeri, architect, presented the plans. Material boards were provided to the 
Commissioners. It was noted the design compliments the adjacent new home that was approved by the Commission. 
The palette is slightly warmer and has similar trim for the doors and windows. Elevations and remderings wre all 
shown. 

Mr. Nazeri said they will have to remove a tree to construct the home. The landscape plan will adhere to the 
approved plans required for the subdivision.  

Chairman Pietron said the area is a densely wooded area, and asked if trees will be added to the lot. 

 Mr. Patel said he planted 13 trees as part of the subdivision approval. Mr. Nolin said 2 trees need to be added to the   
lot. Mr. Patel said he would add 2 trees. 

Commissioner Zimmer asked for the periwinkle to be substituted with a groundcover with a little more body and not 
invasive. 

Commissioner Zimmer moved to approve AC Case 25-04, Commissioner Zimmer moved to approve AC Case 25-04, 
a request for an Appearance Certificate for site, building, and landscape plans for a detached single-family dwelling 
at the property commonly known as 6727 Beckwith Road within the Beckwith Crossing Subdivision authorized under 
Ordinances 19-10 and 21-07 in Morton Grove, Illinois, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1) Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit a revised landscape plan showing all 
existing and proposed landscaping and complying with the requirements of the Appearance Certificate 
issued under Case AC 25-04.  

2) At least two (2) shade trees measuring at least three inches (3 in.) in diameter at breast height shall be 
planted on the subject property and the selected tree species and locations shall be subject to review and 
approval by the Community Development Administrator. 

3) Prior to filing any Building Permit Application, the owner/applicant shall provide the Village with final 
elevations and material specifications for review and approval. Final elevations and materials must be 
deemed consistent with the approved elevations and materials, as determined by the Community 
Development Administrator and Appearance Commission Chairperson. If such designs are deemed to be 
inconsistent with the approved plans or if materials are deemed to be of a lower quality than the approved 
materials, then the owner/applicant will be required to file an application for an amendment to the 
Appearance Certificate.  

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Minx. 
Chairperson Pietron called for the vote. 
 
Commissioner Hedrick voting aye 
Commissioner Manno voting aye 



3 
 

Commissioner Minx voting  aye 
Commissioner Zimmer voting aye 
Chairman Pietron voting  aye 
 
Motion passed 5-0. 
 
CASE:  AC 25-05 
 
APPLICANT:  Deep Oza, One Stop Liquor 
 
LOCATION:  7630 Dempster Street 
 Morton Grove, Illinois 60053 
 
PETITION:  Request for approval of an Appearance Certificate for the installation of security shutters on the 

exterior of the property with a request for waivers to window screening requirements of Chapter 
10-10 

 
Mr. Nolin said the applicant Deep Oza is requesting an Appearance Certificate for the installation of security shutters 
on the exterior of One Stop Liquor with a request for waivers to window screening requirements of Chapter 10-10. 
The applicant installed the security shutters at the subject property without a permit. Staff has cited concerns with 
emergency access, electrical work without a permit, and potential for visual blight if such installations become 
widespread.  

Staff recommends that the shutters be relocated to the interior of the business, but are otherwise supportive of the 
investment in the security shutters. The same installation company hired by the applicant (National Shutters Chicago) 
has installed numerous shutter systems in interior retail locations throughout the region. Numerous other installers 
active in the region include interior installation locations in their marketing materials. Staff understands that shop 
owners want to limit damage to their storefront windows, but research indicates that visible security barriers deter 
such property damage. 

The Plan Commission is also considering requiring security systems to be installed on the interior as part of a 
forthcoming code update to be heard at a public hearing on March 18 and conditions recommended by Staff align 
with the draft code language under consideration. 

Mr. Oza’s son, Harsh, presented the application. He said the shutters should have been installed with a permit and 
they are now complying with the Village process. He said the outdoor installation would better safeguard the 
business by deterring break-ins. 

He described the break-ins involving window breakage, which is a large expense for replacement. They do not file 
insurance claims as the deductible is high and their rates may increase. 

Moving the shutters inside would require rerouting an airduct and modifying counterspace. The main front door has a 
door closure that would need to be rearranged or replaced. 

The applicant noted that exterior shutters are located in Niles and other Villages. He noted that their customer base is 
in favor of the installation and they have a petition with over 100 signatures in favor. 

They would be able to minimize the time that the shutters are closed. 



4 
 

Chairman Pietron said the Commission is concerned with Appearance of the shutters. His is sympathetic with their 
security concerns, but the installation should be interior. He noted that the Fire and Police departments have 
commented in favor of an interior installation. 

Commissioner Zimmer referred to Section 12-12-1:D and noted that exterior shutters are not consistent with the 
appearance evaluation standards. 

The applicant noted that a business in Northbrook has shutters and noted the Village of Northbrook has higher 
median house prices and incomes than Morton Grove. He said if a Village like Northbrook allows exterior shutters, it 
must not be considered a  

Chairman Pietron thanked the business for supporting Morton Grove.  

Chairman Pietron made a motion to approve Case AS 25-05, a request for waivers to select sign requirements of 
Chapter 10-10 for the property commonly known as 7630 Dempster Street in Morton Grove, Illinois, subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. The security shutters shall be installed on the interior of the property. 
2. The security shutter shall be fully stored out of sight and not visible from the exterior during business hours. 

Use of the security shutters over any portion of the subject property window’s or door’s during business 
hours shall be prohibited. 

3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall comply with all comments and 
recommendations set forth in the department review forms issued by the Director of Building and 
Inspectional Services, dated February 10, 2025, the Fire Prevention Bureau Coordinator, received February 
13, 2025, and the Chief of Police, received February 12, 2025, by strict or alternative compliance, subject to 
the final approvals by each respective department representative.  

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Minx 
Chairperson Pietron called for the vote. 
 
 
Commissioner Hedrick voting aye 
Commissioner Manno voting aye 
Commissioner Minx voting  aye 
Commissioner Zimmer voting aye 
Chairman Pietron voting  aye 
 
Motion passed 5-0. 
 
Hearing no further business, Chairman Pietron moved to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Manno. The motion to adjourn the meeting was approved unanimously pursuant to a voice vote at 
7:31 p.m. 
 Minutes by: Anne Ryder Kirchner 








	1 Special Meeting May 13, 2025
	2 AC 25-05 APPEAL STAFF MEMO
	Project Overview
	The applicant installed the security shutters at the subject property without a permit and sought approval of an Appearance Certificate and sign waiver after the fact. Staff have cited concerns with emergency access, electrical work without a permit, ...
	Appearance Commission Determination
	Code Update
	On March 18, 2025, the Plan Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of a text amendment pertaining to the installation of security shutters. The approved text amendment consisted of the same language used by the Appearance Commission in its...

	3 AC 25-05 STAFF REPORT and APPLICATION
	4 AC Minutes 250304
	5 AC 25-05 Appeal Request 03-12-2025



